

The Central Executive Board for Student Associations (CUOS)

# Provisional decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grants (IIS) 2024

# The Central Executive Board for Student Associations May 2024

### 1. Foreword

Dear reader,

Please find enclosed the provisional decision of the Central Executive Board for Student Associations (CUOS) regarding the Internationalization and Inclusion grant (IIS) for 2024. The decisions in this document are provisional. Organizations that applied may make their opinions known before the decision becomes final. For more information about the working methods and methods used for assessment, please refer to the first chapter. Chapter 4 onwards provides an overview of the IIS per organization, along with a substantive evaluation of the application concerned.

With regard to the applications for, and allocation of, grants, please refer to the overview in Chapter 3. The total amount requested for Internationalization and Inclusion grants per organization was higher than the upper limit available to the CUOS. As a result, the CUOS has had to make concessions on the basis of parameters set in line with the Internationalization and Inclusion grant regulations. This means that some student organizations have either not been allocated the full amount they requested, or have been allocated certain amounts for specific internationalization and/or inclusion activities. This enabled the CUOS to weigh up the total costs against the total benefits, and divide sums as fairly and proportionally as possible.

### Sincerely,

Wouter Ahlers (President)

Debora van Tricht (Secretary)

Martijn van der Meer (Finance)

Ole van Heloma Lugt (Housing)

Lindgerd Pauwels (PR & Communication)

# Contents

1.	Foreword	2
2	. Working method	6
3	. Internationalization grants per organization	8
4	. Individual decisions	11
	4.1 ACLO	11
	4.2 ACSA	12
	4.3 AEGEE	13
	4.4 Amicus Civitas	14
	4.5 Groene Uilen-Moestasj	15
	4.6 Bulgarian Society Groningen (BGSG)	16
	4.7 Caerus	17
	4.8 Clio	18
	4.9 Commotie	19
	4.10 Cover	20
	4.11 EBF	21
	4.12 ELSA	22
	4.13 ESN Groningen	23
	4.14 Flanor	24
	4.15 FSG	25
	4.16 G.S.B.C. AMOR	26
	4.17 G.S.P.V. de Ramenlappers	27
	4.18 Ganymedes LGBT+	28
	4.19 GDS Kalliope	29
	4.20 GISA	30
	4.21 GLV Idun	31
	4.22 G.S.Z.V. De Golfbreker	32
	4.23 Groninger Fiscale Eenheid	33
	4.24 Gsb	34
	4.25 GSRC	35
	4.26 GST	36
	4.27 IFMSA-Groningen	37
	4.28 Study Association IK	38
	4.29 JFV Groningen	39
	4.30 Lugus	40

4.31 M.F.V. Panacea	41
4.32 MESA	42
4.33 NCF Fryslan	43
4.34 Nexus	44
4.35 NUTS	45
4.36 ODIOM	46
4.37 Pop choir Estrellas	47
4.38 Sirius A	48
4.39 Stichting Groninger Studentenkrant (SK)	49
4.40 Sociëtas	50
4.41 Stichting KEI	51
4.42 Surface	52
4.43 TEIMUN	53
4.44 VIP	54
4.45 VIP (joint)	55
4.46 G.S.A.V. Vitalis	56
4.47 <b>7</b> aza	57

### 2. Working method

### General

The aim of the IIS is to promote internationalization and inclusion in existing student organizations. Every organization can apply for a grant up to a maximum of €1,000. The ceiling for grants in 2024 was set at €15,000. As illustrated by the overview of applications, the total amount requested this year substantially exceeded this ceiling. The CUOS tried to honour as many grant applications as possible, whether fully or partially, but it retained the right, in line with Article 4(4) of the Internationalization and Inclusion grant regulations (hereinafter: the Regulations), to decide which applications were the most eligible for being allocated a grant.

The CUOS works in accordance with the CUOS Regulations and the Regulations. This provisional decision ensues from the CUOS task of assessing the organizations that apply for the IIS. Every organization will be sent a letter setting out this provisional decision after the publication of this document. The CUOS will give the organizations an opportunity to take note of the provisional decision and make their views known within 10 working days, in line with Article 9(4) of the Regulations. If an organization makes its views known within this period, the CUOS will make a definitive decision as soon as possible and inform the organization of this new decision. If an organization does not make its views known, the provisional decisional will become final by operation of law.

Accountability for the activities for which the grant was allocated is set out in Article 10 of the Regulations.

### Deadline

As was the case last year, organizations had until 11.59 p.m. on 31 March 2024 to submit an application. This deadline was set to give organizations extra time after the deadline for activity grants and housing elapsed on 1 February. Additional documents were gathered during the first weeks after the deadline, after which the applications were processed in detail. Once a complete application has been processed, the provisional decision was communicated to the organization concerned.

### **Evaluation**

The CUOS evaluates applications according to the following criteria, as set out in Article 7 of the Regulations: the content, aim, target group and scope, approach, PR plan, amount and reasonableness, opportunity to acquire own income, and ratio of

requested amount to own budget. As well as these substantive evaluation criteria, in accordance with Article 8 of the Regulations, a number of weighting factors were also taken into account in the evaluation: the diversity in the range of activities, support, the contribution to academic development, and compliance of the plan with UG policy. The most important weighting factor is whether the activity contributes to the integration and inclusion of international and Dutch students.

As was the case last year, CUOS also considers the financial need of the application, in line with Article 3 of the Regulations. Amounts that have been requested for activities that mainly involve eating and drinking, or for general promotional material, are only honoured for 50%, in accordance with Article 3(3). In addition, in view of the grant ceiling and Article 4(4), the CUOS has allocated half of the requested amount for food and drink for all other activities. On the grounds of Article 3(4), this year the CUOS has not allocated funding for alcoholic drinks, and applications for grants purely to cover alcoholic drinks were rejected. With regard to professional translations, the CUOS will reimburse the full cost of translating essential documents (including Articles of Association), but funding will not be allocated for the translation of non-essential documents, such as internal regulations.

# 3. Internationalization grants per organization

Organization	Amount requested	Amount allocated
ACLO	1,000	o
ACSA	1,000	500
AEGEE	396.06	396.06
Amicus Civitas	955	o
De Groene Uilen-Moestasj committee	1,000	125
BGSG	1,000	1,000
Caerus	900	900
Clio	845.42	281.22
Commotie	60	60
Cover	250	125
EBF	1,000	О
ELSA	140	120
ESN Groningen	1,000	820
Flanor	600	600
FSG	1,000	450
G.S.B.C. AMOR	o	o
G.S.P.V. de Ramenlappers	1,000	287
Ganymedes LGBT+	1,000	1,000
GDS Kalliope	1,000	1,000
GISA	1,000	o

GLV Idun	430	265
G.S.Z.V. De Golfbreker	650	450
Groninger Fiscale Eenheid	660.05	386.55
GSb	1550	1550
GSRC	991.10	211.73
GST	1,000	О
IFMSA-Groningen	1,000	О
IK	300	300
JFV Groningen	1,000	700
Lugus	1,000	200
M.F.V. Panacea	496.29	327.97
MESA	91.55	91.55
NCF Fryslan	403.30	101.30
Nexus	520	470
NUTS	907.50	907.50
ODIOM	77.66	77.66
Pop choir Estrellas	230	72.24
Sirius A	72.42	72.42
SK	1,000	725
Sociëtas	51.47	51.47
Stichting KEI	1,000	1,000
Surface	202	o
TEIMUN	1,000	700

VIP	50	50
VIP (joint)	1,000	1,000
Vitalis	489.91	240.01
Zaza	60	60
TOTAL	€32,219.73	17,462.95

# 4. Individual decisions

# **4.1 ACLO**

# Organization

This year, the student association ACLO:

- applied for €1,000;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that ACLO:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID NOT apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided NOT to allocate a grant to ACLO for 2024 for the purposes of translating the multi-year plan. Article 3(4) of the Regulations states that the CUOS does not allocate funding for the translation of non-essential documents.

### **4.2** ACSA

# Organization

This year, the organization African Caribbean Student Association (ACSA):

- applied for €1,000;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that ACSA:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €500 to ACSA for 2024. The CUOS is allocating this grant for the purposes of organizing the symposium. The CUOS is allocating the grant on the condition that it must not be spent on alcoholic drinks. Also, in accordance with Article 3(4) of the Regulations, the CUOS is not allocating funding to financially compensate members and the association in general.

### **4.3 AEGEE**

# Organization

This year, the Association des États Généraux des Étudiants de l'Europe - Groningen (AEGEE-Groningen):

- applied for €396.06;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that AEGEE:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €396.06 to AEGEE for 2024. The CUOS is allocating this grant for the purposes of Europe Week and the Panel Discussion. The CUOS is allocating the grant on the condition that it must not be spent on alcoholic drinks, in accordance with Article 3(4) of the Regulations.

# 4.4 Amicus Civitas

# Organization

This year, the organization Amicus Civitas:

- applied for €955;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that Amicus Civitas:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID NOT apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €0 to Amicus Civitas for 2024. The application cited regular activities, without specifically international or inclusive dimensions, which is not in line with Articles 7 and 8 of the Regulations.

# 4.5 Groene Uilen-Moestasj

# Organization

This year, the organization Groene Uilen-Moestasj:

- applied for €1,000;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that Groene Uilen:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €125 to Groene Uilen-Moestasj for 2024, for the specialized wheelchair 3x3 On Wheels at the 3x3NL Groningen Tournament GUM. The CUOS is not allocating funding for the LoCs and travel expenses, as the CUOS does not allocate financial compensation to members, in accordance with Article 3(4) of the Regulations.

# 4.6 Bulgarian Society Groningen (BGSG)

# Organization

The organization BGSG:

- applied for €1,000;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that BGSG:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €1,000 to BGSG for 2024. The CUOS is allocating this grant for the purposes of the Spring Gala. The CUOS is allocating the grant on the condition that it must not be spent on alcoholic drinks.

# 4.7 Caerus

# Organization

The organization Caerus:

- applied for €900;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that Caerus:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €900 to Caerus for 2024. The CUOS is allocating this grant for the purposes of the Cultural Awareness and Inclusivity Programme. The CUOS is allocating the grant on the condition that it must not be spent on alcoholic drinks.

# **4.8 Clio**

# Organization

This year, the organization Club for the International Relations and International Organization programme (Clio):

- applied for €845.42;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that Clio:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €281.22 to Clio for 2024. The CUOS is allocating this grant for the purposes of stickers and a flag for the 'Raising Awareness LGBTQ+' initiative. The CUOS has decided not to allocate the entire amount requested in view of the reasonableness of the costs in accordance with Article 7(5) and the scope of this part of the initiative in accordance with Article 7(3) of the Regulations.

# 4.9 Commotie

# Organization

This year, the organization Commotie:

- applied for €60;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that Commotie:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €60 to Commotie for 2024 for the purposes of hiring a venue for the International Dance activity.

# **4.10 Cover**

# Organization

The organization Cover:

- applied for €250;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that Cover:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €125 to Cover for 2024. The CUOS is allocating this grant so that the language exchange café can hire a location and serve coffee and tea. The CUOS has reduced the amount by 50% in accordance with Article 3(3) of the Regulations and is allocating the grant on the condition that it may not be spent on alcoholic drinks.

# 4.11 EBF

# Organization

The organization EBF:

- applied for €1,000;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that EBF:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID NOT apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS NOT demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided NOT to allocate funding to EBF for 2024. The limited size of the target group and the scope of the international development project do not satisfy the required criteria for an internationalization and inclusion grant in accordance with Article 7(3) of the Regulations.

### **4.12 ELSA**

# Organization

This year, the organization Elsa:

- applied for €140;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that ELSA:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €120 to ELSA for 2024. The CUOS is allocating this grant for the purposes of the discussion evening 'Moving forward together' and the exchange networking event.

# 4.13 ESN Groningen

### Organization

The organization Erasmus Student Network (ESN):

- applied for €1,000;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

### The CUOS has assessed that ESN:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €820 to ESN for 2024. The CUOS is allocating this grant for the purposes of the pub quiz and dinner on Integration Night. The CUOS does not allocate funding for alcoholic drinks, in accordance with Article 3(4) of the Regulations. In addition, the CUOS will allocate a maximum of 50% of amounts requested for food and drink in accordance with Article 3(3) of the Regulations. ESN is organizing Integration Night in collaboration with several other student organizations, but ESN is primarily responsible for providing accountability.

# 4.14 Flanor

# Organization

The organization Flanor:

- applied for €600;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that Flanor:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €600 to Flanor for 2024. The CUOS is allocating this grant for the purposes of paying the author's fee for the English lecture during the KEI week.

### 4.15 FSG

# Organization

The organization Financial Study association Groningen (FSG):

- applied for €1,000;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

### The CUOS has assessed that FSG:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

### Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €450 to FSG for 2024. The CUOS is allocating this grant for the purposes of setting up an integration committee and the international introduction dinner. The CUOS is allocating the grant on the condition that it must not be spent on alcoholic drinks. Activities primarily focusing on eating and drinking may not account for more than 50% of the costs, in accordance with Article 3(3) of the Regulations. In addition, the CUOS does not allocate funding to financially compensate members and the association in general, in line with Article 3(4) of the Regulations.

# 4.16 G.S.B.C. AMOR

# Organization

The organization AMOR:

- applied for €80;
- did NOT submit their application on time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that AMOR:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €0 to AMOR for 2024. This is because AMOR was too late in submitting the compulsory documents for the IIS application. A term was offered to remedy this, but the organization did not respond, even after repeated calls.

# 4.17 G.S.P.V. de Ramenlappers

# Organization

The organization G.S.P.V. de Ramenlappers:

- applied for €1,000;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that Ramenlappers:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €287 to Ramenlappers for 2024. The CUOS is allocating this grant for the purposes of the introduction day, and general promotion in the form of English flyers and pride stickers. Funding is not being allocated for the pub quiz and the glow in the dark tournament as these are regular activities and do not demonstrate specific internationalization or inclusion dimensions, in accordance with the Regulations. The CUOS refers to Articles 7 and 8 of the Regulations. The CUOS does not allocate funding for alcoholic drinks, in accordance with Article 3(4) of the Regulations, and will only allocate a maximum of 50% of the funding for the English flyers in line with the rules concerning general promotion material in Article 3(3) of the Regulations.

# 4.18 Ganymedes LGBT+

# Organization

This year, the organization Ganymedes:

- applied for €1,000;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that Ganymedes:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €1,000 to Ganymedes for 2024. The CUOS is allocating this grant for the purpose of re-branding Ganymedes LGBT+ as a highly inclusive student organization.

# 4.19 GDS Kalliope

# Organization

The organization Kalliope:

- applied for €1,000;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that Kalliope:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €1,000 to Kalliope for 2024. The CUOS is allocating this grant for the purposes of translating the Articles of Association into English.

### 4.20 GISA

# Organization

The organization Groningen Indian Students Association (GISA):

- applied for €1,000;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that GISA:

- DOES NOT meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided NOT to allocate funding to GISA for 2024. Article 2(2.c) of the Regulations states that the organization's Articles of Association must stipulate that the executive committee of the student organization must be made up of students. GISA was alerted to this in 2022 and did not provide the CUOS with a new version of the Articles of Association before the 1 February 2023 deadline.

### 4.21 GLV Idun

### Organization

The organization GLV Idun:

- applied for €430;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that Idun:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €265 to Idun for 2024. The CUOS is allocating this grant for the purposes of the Pride promotion and drag bingo night, and 50% of the costs of the cultural cuisine activity. The CUOS is allocating the grant on the condition that it must not be spent on alcoholic drinks. The CUOS is not funding the prizes for the drag queen night, in accordance with Articles 7 and 8 of the Regulations.

### 4.22 G.S.Z.V. De Golfbreker

### Organization

The organization De Golfbreker:

- applied for €650;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that De Golfbreker:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €450 to De Golfbreker for 2024. The CUOS is allocating this grant for the purposes of English club magazines and the Code Blue information evenings. The CUOS has decided not to fund the general activities as they do not demonstrate internationalization or inclusion dimensions and do not therefore promote contact between different groups of members as referred to in the Regulations. In accordance with Article 3(4) of the Regulations, the CUOS does not allocate funding to financially compensate members and the association in general.

# 4.23 Groninger Fiscale Eenheid

# Organization

This year, the organization Groninger Fiscale Eenheid (GFE):

- applied for €660.05;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

### The CUOS has assessed that GFE:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €386.55 to GFE for 2024. The CUOS is allocating this grant for the purposes of the Femme Fiscale. The CUOS does not allocate funding for alcoholic drinks, in accordance with Article 3(4) of the Regulations.

### 4.24 Gsb

# Organization

The organization Groninger Studentenbond (GSb):

- applied for €1550;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that GSb:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €1,550 to GSB for 2024. The CUOS is allocating this grant for the purpose of translating the Articles of Association, the inclusivity and accessibility workshop, participation in Groningen Pride and Trans Day of Visibility, and an international potluck event. The CUOS does not allocate funding for alcoholic drinks, in accordance with Article 3(4) of the Regulations. GSb is organizing the international potluck event in collaboration with several other student organizations, but GSb is primarily responsible for providing accountability.

### **4.25 GSRC**

# Organization

This year, the Groningen Student Rugby Club (GSRC):

- applied for €991.10;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

### The CUOS has assessed that GSRC:

- DOES NOT meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided NOT to allocate a grant to GSRC for 2024. Article 2(2.c) of the Regulations states that the Articles of Association must stipulate that the executive committee of the student organization must be made up of students. In addition, the organization has not provided proof of current registration with the Dutch Chamber of Commerce (KvK).

# 4.26 GST

# Organization

The organization Groningen Student Theatre (GST):

- applied for €1,000;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that GST:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS NOT sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID NOT apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided NOT to allocate funding to GST for 2024. The CUOS has decided not to fund the activities for which the grant was intended as they are general activities, which do not demonstrate internationalizing or inclusive dimensions, and do not therefore promote contact between different groups of members as referred to in the Regulations. In accordance with Article 3(4) of the Regulations, the CUOS does not allocate funding to financially compensate members and the association in general.

# 4.27 IFMSA-Groningen

# Organization

The organization International Federation of Medical Student Associations (IFMSA):

- applied for €1,000;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that IFMSA:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID NOT apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €0 to IFMSA for 2024. In accordance with Article 3(4) and Article 7(3) of the Regulations, the CUOS does not allocate funding to financially compensate members and the association in general. In addition, the span of the target group and scope of Twinning Project are too limited.

# 4.28 Study Association IK

# Organization

The organization Study Association IK:

- applied for €300;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

#### The CUOS has assessed that IK:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €300 to IK for 2024. The CUOS is allocating this grant for the purposes of pride stickers, pride flag, and partially for the translation of the Articles of Association.

# 4.29 JFV Groningen

# Organization

The organization Juridische Faculteitsvereniging Groningen (JFV):

- applied for €1,000;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that JFV:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €700 to JFV for 2024. The CUOS is allocating this grant for the purposes of the English Track Groninger Juristen Conference. JFV must, however, provide details of how the costs will be shared with Nexus. The CUOS is not funding the pub lecture due to the amount and reasonableness of the costs, and the organization's own assets. The CUOS refers to Articles 7(5) and 6 of the Regulations.

#### **4.30 Lugus**

#### Organization

This year, the organization TBV Lugus:

- applied for €1,000;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that Lugus:

- DOES NOT meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €200 to Lugus for 2024. The CUOS is allocating this grant conditionally for the purposes of the Inclusion Event ESTIEM Re-Exchange. Lugus must provide its official Articles of Association as justification, both authorized and signed. The CUOS is allocating the grant on the condition that it must not be spent on alcoholic drinks. The CUOS is not allocating funding for the activities, other activities. as these are regular with no internationalization or inclusion dimensions, which is not in line with the Regulations. The CUOS refers to Articles 7 and 8 of the Regulations.

#### 4.31 M.F.V. Panacea

# Organization

This year, the organization Medical Faculty Association Panacea:

- applied for €496.29;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that Panacea:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €327.97 to Panacea for 2024. The CUOS is allocating this grant for the purposes of the Iftar and Wellbeing Week activities. This amount is being allocated in line with Article 3(3) of the Regulations.

# 4.32 MESA

# Organization

This year, the organization MESA:

- applied for €91.55;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that MESA:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €91.55 to MESA for 2024. The CUOS is allocating this grant for the purposes of pride stickers.

# 4.33 NCF Fryslan

# Organization

This year, the organization Nobis Cura Futuri (NCF):

- applied for €1,000;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

#### The CUOS has assessed that NCF:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €101.30 to NCF for 2024. The CUOS is allocating this grant for the purposes of the International Fair. The CUOS is not allocating funding for the other activities, as these are regular activities, with no specifically international or inclusive dimensions, which is not in line with the Regulations. The CUOS refers to Articles 7 and 8 of the Regulations.

## **4.34 Nexus**

# Organization

This year, the organization Nexus:

- applied for €520;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that Nexus:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €470 to Nexus for 2024. The CUOS is allocating this grant for the purposes of the English Track Groninger Juristen Conference and pub lectures. The CUOS has decided not to fund the introduction activity as it does not demonstrate internationalization or inclusion dimensions and is therefore not in line with the Regulations. The CUOS refers to Articles 7 and 8 of the Regulations.

## **4.35 NUTS**

# Organization

This year, the organization NUTS:

- applied for €907.50;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that NUTS:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €907.50 to NUTS for 2024. The CUOS is allocating this grant for the purposes of translating the Articles of Association.

# **4.36 ODIOM**

## Organization

This year, the organization ODIOM:

- applied for €77.66;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

#### The CUOS has assessed that ODIOM:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €77.66 to ODIOM for 2024. The CUOS is allocating this grant for the purposes of an inclusion flag and inclusion stickers.

# 4.37 Pop choir Estrellas

# Organization

The organization Pop choir Estrellas:

- applied for €230;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that Pop choir Estrellas:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €72.24 to Pop choir Estrellas for 2024. The CUOS is allocating this grant for the purposes of the flyers and banner. The CUOS only allocates funding for a percentage of general promotional material in accordance with Article 3(3) of the Regulations.

## 4.38 Sirius A

# Organization

This year, the organization Sirius A:

- applied for €72.42;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that Sirius A:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €72.42 to Sirius A for 2024. The CUOS is allocating this grant for the purposes of LGBTQ+ stickers.

# 4.39 Stichting Groninger Studentenkrant (SK)

# Organization

This year, the organization SK:

- applied for €1,000;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

#### The CUOS has assessed that SK:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €725 to SK for 2024. The CUOS is allocating this grant for the purposes of Pride Month special editions, re-working the website and promotional material. The CUOS only allocates funding for a percentage of general promotional material in accordance with Article 3(3) of the Regulations.

## 4.40 Sociëtas

# Organization

This year, the organization Sociëtas:

- applied for €51.47;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that Sociëtas:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €51.47 to Sociëtas for 2024. The CUOS is allocating this grant for the purposes of pride stickers.

# 4.41 Stichting KEI

# Organization

The organization Stichting KEI:

- applied for €1,000;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that KEI:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €1,000 to KEI for 2024. The CUOS is allocating this grant for the purposes of an English information session during Time to Talk, and for the International workshop during More to Explore.

#### 4.42 Surface

# Organization

The organization Surface:

- applied for €202;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that Surface:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €0 to Surface for 2024. The CUOS does not allocate funding for the transcription programme, in accordance with Articles 7 and 8 of the Regulations.

#### **4.43 TEIMUN**

# Organization

This year, the organization TEIMUN:

- applied for €1,000;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

#### The CUOS has assessed that TEIMUN:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €700 to TEIMUN for 2024. The CUOS is allocating this grant for the purposes of the TEIMUN Global Village. The CUOS is not allocating funding for financial aid, as the CUOS does not allocate funding to financially compensate members. The CUOS refers to Articles 3 and 4 of the Regulations. In addition, the CUOS is not allocating funding to GrunnMUN and MUN Society 2024, as these are regular activities. The CUOS refers to Articles 7 and 8 of the Regulations.

# 4.44 VIP

# Organization

This year, the organization VIP:

- applied for €50;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that VIP:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €50 to VIP for 2024. The CUOS is allocating this grant for the purposes of the pride flag.

# **4.45 VIP (joint)**

# Organization

This year, the organization VIP:

- jointly applied for €1,000, together with the organizations MVF Panacea, GLV Idun, Clio, EBF, Ibn Battuta, and ESN;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that VIP:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €1,000 to VIP for 2024. The CUOS is allocating this grant for the purposes of hiring a theatre, the Social Rules Game Workshop, and Stranger Things Have Happened. VIP is primarily responsible for providing accountability.

# 4.46 G.S.A.V. Vitalis

#### Organization

This year, the organization Vitalis:

- applied for €489.91;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that Vitalis:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €240.01 to Vitalis for 2024. The CUOS is allocating this grant for the purposes of translating the internal regulations. The CUOS does not allocate funding for translating non-essential documents, such as committee scripts. The CUOS refers to Article 3(4) of the Regulations.

## 4.47 Zaza

# Organization

The organization ZaZa:

- applied for €60;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Evaluation for Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has assessed that ZaZa:

- DOES meet the general requirements;
- HAS sufficiently demonstrated the extent to which the organization is currently internationalized;
- DID apply for a grant for projects or activities eligible for funding, which contribute sufficiently to the internationalization of student organizations and/or inclusion of Dutch and international students in Groningen;
- HAS demonstrated a financial need for support from the CUOS.

Decision regarding Internationalization and Inclusion grant

The CUOS has decided to allocate €60 to ZaZa for 2024. The CUOS is allocating this grant for the purposes of skating with language buddies.